
To: James P. Hoffa, EBT General President 

From: Members of the Independent Review Board 

Re: Proposed Charges Against Local 430 President Kevin Cicak 

Date: February 4, 2002 

L INTRODUCTION 

The Independent Review Board ("IRB") refers the below report to the General President 

and recommends that charges be filed against Local 430 President and principal officer Kevin 

Cicak ("Cicak") for bringing reproach upon the IBT and violating his oath of office. While 

President of Local 430, located in York, Pennsylvania, Cicak colluded with the owner of 

Shumaker Trucking Company ("Shumaker Trucking") to provide union membership to some 

employees and not others, at the company's request. This was done to allow the company to 

continue to make deliveries to union construction sites in New York City thereby evading IBT 

Local 282's 1 jurisdiction in New York.2 In January 2000, Cicak entered into two contracts with 

Shumaker Trucking. These two contracts were designated the New York Metro Division 

company contract and the New York Metro Division subcontracted owner-operators contract 

1 Local 282 is a construction Local covering New York City. In 1995, Local 282, 
located in Lake Success, New York, was placed in government trusteeship as a result of a civil 
RICO complaint filed against the Local. This complaint detailed the Gambino LCN's influence 
over Local 282's Executive Board and their receipt, either through Local 282 officers and 
members or directly from employers and companies in the industry doing business with Local 282, 
of proceeds from racketeering acts involving Local 282 officers, employees and members. 

2 To gain entrance to union sites, non-union companies are required to pay their 
drivers the prevailing Local 282 contract wage and benefits as well as a ten percent processing fee 
to the contractor. (Ex. 21) 
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which covered only select Shumaker Trucking drivers and subcontracted owner-operators who 

made deliveries to New York City construction sites. At the time Shumaker had other drivers 

who did not go to New York and remained unorganized. 

As Cicak knew, in November 1999, IBT Local 429 in Reading, Pennsylvania had refused 

to accept dues payments from Shumaker Trucking because the company did not have a collective 

bargaining agreement with Local 429, and the company illegally had been paying dues for its New 

York delivery drivers so company trucks could make deliveries to New York City union 

construction sites. 

In May 2001, of the approximately twenty-five drivers and subcontracted owner-operators 

employed by the company only four were enrolled in the union. Although aware that the 

company had other drivers and subcontracted drivers, Cicak made no attempt to organize them. 

Indeed, prior to Cicak meeting with the employer, Local 430 had not been designated as the 

bargaining agent for the Shumaker Trucking employees. Evidencing Cicak's knowing 

participation in the scheme to evade Local 282 and to allow the employers to remain non-

unionized, Cicak failed to do the minimal steps necessary to organize the company. He failed to 

obtain authorization cards from employees, to visit the company and to discuss a contract with 

company employees. Indeed, Local Bylaws Article 26(A) required that whenever a collective 

bargaining agreement is about to be negotiated, the Local President must hold a meeting with 

persons who will be working under the agreement to determine and authorize bargaining demands 

to be made. Instead, Cicak only met with the employer and drafted contracts on terms the 

employer dictated. After this, Cicak mailed three Shumaker Trucking employees authorization 

cards, membership applications and ballots to vote on the contract, which he had never discussed 



with them. 

Cicak admitted that his actions concerning the Shumaker employees were inconsistent 

with the usual procedures for organizing. Indeed, to settle a National Labor Relations Board 

("NLRB") complaint filed by a former Shumaker Trucking employee, Shumaker Trucking 

executed a settlement agreement agreeing not to recognize Local 430 as the bargaining 

representative of Shumaker Trucking employees unless and until Local 430 was certified as the 

collective bargaining representative of Shumaker's employees by the NLRB. As a result of his 

conduct, it appears that Cicak violated Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1) 

and (2) of the EBT Constitution. 

H. JURISDICTION 

Pursuant to Article XIX, Section 11(a) of the IBT Constitution, this disciplinary matter is 

within the jurisdiction of the General President. Paragraph G(e) of the March 14, 1989 Consent 

Decree in United States v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 88 Civ. 4486 (S.D.N. Y.) and 

Paragraph 1(6) of the court-approved Rules and Procedures for Operation of the IRB (the "ERB 

Rules") require that within 90 days of the IRB's referral of a matter to an IBT entity, that IBT 

entity must file with the IRB written findings setting forth the specific action taken and the 

reasons for that action. Pursuant to Paragraph 1(9) of the IRB Rules, not meeting this deadline 

may be considered a failure to cooperate with the IRB. 
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m . INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 

A. Kevin Cicak 

Cicak, the Local's President, principal officer and business agent, joined Local 430 in 

1976. In 1992, the Local's Executive Board appointed Cicak business agent. In 1994, upon the 

retirement of former Local 430 President Ken Stocker, the Local 430 Executive Board appointed 

Cicak President and principal officer. (Ex. 1 at 4-8) In October 2001, Cicak was elected 

President in an uncontested Local election. In June 2001, Cicak was appointed a Joint Council 53 

Trustee. In December 2000, Cicak was appointed a union trustee of the Central Pennsylvania 

Teamster's Health, Welfare and Pension Funds. ( Id. at 6) In 2000, Cicak's salary from Local 

430 was $64,005. (Ex. 2) Cicak's monthly Joint Council 53 salary was $800. (Ex. 1 at 6) 

Local 430 represents approximately 1,563 employees under thirty-four collective 

bargaining agreements. (Ex. 2) From 1997 to 2000, the Local's total membership declined by 

533 members or nearly twenty-five percent. (Ex. 2) In addition to Cicak, the Local employed one 

other full-time business agent, T. Alan Koch, and a part-time business agent, Kitty Hake. (Ex. 1 at 

7-9; Ex. 2) 

B. Shumaker Trucking Company 

Neil Shumaker was the Chief Officer of Shumaker Trucking, located at 601 US Route 

15 N, Dillsburg, Pennsylvania. David Shumaker was the company Vice President. (Ex. 3) 

Shumaker Trucking's business involved the delivery of building materials to construction sites 

throughout the middle Atlantic states including union construction sites in New York City. (Ex. 
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1 at 12) In May 2001, the company employed at least six drivers3 and approximately 19 sub-

contracted drivers who made deliveries for the company using their own equipment. (Ex. 1 at 12-

13; Ex. 4 at 9; Ex. 5)4 A portion of the company's drivers and subcontracted owner-operators 

regularly made deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Ex. 1 at 12-13)5 

C. Local 429 and Shumaker Trucking 

Before entering into the scheme with Cicak, Shumaker had a different illegal arrangement 

with Local 429. Between at least 1985 and September 2000, Local 429, located in Reading, 

Pennsylvania, provided Shumaker employees with union cards without such employees being 

covered under a collective bargaining agreement. The employer paid the dues for these 

employees which were not deducted from their pay. 6 For example, James Brady, Sr. ("Brady") 

testified in his October 24, 2001 sworn ERB examination that he has worked for Shumaker 

3 Former company driver Victor Kresge testified that in January 2000 Shumaker 
Trucking employed six to eight company drivers. (Ex. 4) 

4 According to Cicak, company drivers who made New York deliveries were 
grouped into the New York Metro Division of Shumaker Trucking while subcontracted owner-
operators were in the New York Metro Division Subcontracted owner-operators. Both sets of 
drivers worked out of Shumaker Trucking's only facility in Dillsburg. 

5 David Shumaker was also the chief officer of Masonry Transport, Inc., located at 
601 US Route 15 N, Dillsburg, Pennsylvania. (Ex. 11) On October 25, 2000, David Shumaker 
signed on behalf of Masonry Transport a project labor agreement with Local 430 which covered 
delivery work to projects located in the greater metropolitan New York for Volmar construction 
company. (Ex. 12) On October 25, 2000, Cicak signed the agreement for the Local but wrote on 
the bottom of the signatory page that the agreement was subject to approval of the membership 
via ballot. (Id.) According to Cicak, this agreement was never implemented because Masonry 
Transport notified Local 430 it had lost the work. (Ex. 1 at 16-17) However, in a November 22, 
2000 letter, Cicak advised Shumaker that none of Masonry Transport's employees elected to 
vote on the labor agreement and, without ratification, the Local could not implement the 
agreement or extend membership to Masonry Transport employees. (Ex. 19) 

6 This is a violation of labor law. 29 U.S.C. § 186(a) 
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Trucking since 1980. (Ex. 16 at 5) Brady was a driver in the company's Boom Division and 

regularly made deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Id. at 7) According to 

Brady, Shumaker paid his Local 429 union dues and provided dues receipts for Brady from 1985 

until September 2000 so that Brady could make deliveries to New York City construction sites.7 

These dues were not deducted from Brady's pay. (Ex. 16 at 10) This practice was in apparent 

violation of 29 U.S.C. § 186(a). Brady testified that during the period his Local 429 dues were 

paid by Shumaker he did not receive any Teamster benefits. (Id. at 1-13) 

Local 429 President Thomas Rochowicz testified that after he assumed Local office in 

January 2000, he learned that employers who did not have collective bargaining agreements with 

the Local, including Shumaker Trucking, were sending checks to the Local for dues. (Ex. 13 at 

13-15) On August 24, 2000, Local 429 sent letters to those companies advising each of these 

Brady testified as follows: 

Q: ...[wjhen you say you received a card and dues receipts, what specifically 
were you receiving? 

A: Dues receipts from Local 429 paid by Shumaker Trucking. 

Q: Is that a piece of paper or just a card? 
A: Yes, a piece of paper about four inches square. 
Q: When did you start receiving that? 
A: When I went with the Boom Division. That would be 1985. 
Q: And how long did you receive that? 
A: Until September of last year. 
Q: And how often did your receive them? 
A: I believe he was paying those quarterly, so every four months. 
Q: And why did you get these cards, these 429 cards? 
A: To get into the job sites in New York City. 
Q: And if you didn't have this card, could you get into the job site in New 

York City? 
A: Not if it was union. 

(Ex. 16 at 10-11) 
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companies that no collective bargaining agreement existed between the company and Local 429 

and that unless the employees designated Local 429 as their exclusive bargaining representative 

and a collective bargaining agreement was negotiated between the company and Local 429, no 

further dues payments would be accepted and the membership status of employees would be 

rescinded. (Ex. 14, Ex. 15); (Ex. 13 at 16)8 Shumaker Trucking and Masonry Transport did not 

have collective bargaining agreements with Local 429 and received notifications that dues 

payments would no longer be accepted by Local 429. (Ex. 13 at 20; Ex. 15) 

Rochowicz spoke with David Shumaker after Shumaker received the notification that the 

Local would no longer accept dues payments from Shumaker. Rochowicz testified : 

[Shumaker] was upset that it wasn't continuing as 
to what he would have liked to have seen, what he 
had in the past. I just told him that it couldn't happen; 
that we can't have these arrangements that they had. 
He wanted to continue that arrangement. I told him 
no, that we would have to address his people. He 
couldn't have it. (Ex. 13 at 20) 

Rochowicz explained that Shumaker was "upset" because Shumaker "needed those union receipts 

to get on job sites in New York." (Id. at 22) Shumaker's "arrangement" with Local 429 

apparently involved paying dues for employees who were not covered by a collective bargaining 

agreement so those employees could present a union card to facilitate Shumaker Trucking 

deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Ex. 16 at 10-12) These dues were not 

8 On February 20, 2001, Joint Council 53 President Frank Gillen ("Gillen"), whom the 
IBT General President had appointed his personal representative to Local 429, forwarded a 
report to the General President concerning Local 429. (Ex. 14 ) This report in part detailed that 
at least eight companies, which did not have collective bargaining agreements with the Local or 
dues checkoff authorizations, had been making dues payments to Local 429. (Id. at 5) 
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deducted from the employees' pay but instead were paid by the employer in apparent violation of 

29 U.S.C. § 186(a). 

According to Rochowicz, he did not negotiate a collective bargaining agreement with 

Shumaker Trucking because the company was not in Local 429's jurisdiction and Rochowicz did 

not think it was worth the effort to negotiate and maintain a contract. Rochowicz testified that he 

told Shumaker "to go somewhere else" and directed him to Harrisburg [Local 776] or York 

[Local 430], (Ex. 13 at 27-28) According to Gillen's February 20, 2001 report, Local 429 

"turned over [Shumaker Trucking] to Local 430 which, to my understanding, has negotiated a 

collective bargaining agreement with Shumaker. As to the other companies, Local 429 stopped 

taking any dues." (Ex. 14 at 5) 

D. Local 430 and Shumaker Trucking 

Cicak testified that in August 2000 Gillen informed him that Shumaker Trucking and 

Masonry Transport did not have contracts with 429 but had members who were paying dues. 

Gillen instructed Cicak "get a contract" with both companies (Ex. 1 at 21-22) 9 Shortly after 

Cicak spoke with Gillen, Shumaker contacted Cicak. According to Cicak, Shumaker wanted a 

contract with Local 430 so that his employees, for whom Shumaker had paid dues to Local 429, 

Cicak testified to the following concerning his conversation with Gillen : 

...He said that there were two units that did not have a contract where they had 
members who were paying dues to 429, that he was going to cease that 
relationship. He said, they are in your jurisdiction, contact these guys. And he gave 
me the contact information for Shumaker. 

He said, see if you can get a contract with these companies because I don't 
want these guys hurt, because they do delivering to construction sites in New 
York, they won't be able to do it anymore but we have to have a contract. (Ex. 1 
at 21-22) 
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could continue to make deliveries to New York and keep their jobs. (Id- at 22) 

Shumaker driver Brady learned in September 2000 that Local 429 did not have a contract 

with Shumaker Trucking and Local 429 refused to negotiate a contract with Shumaker. In 

September 2000, Brady and four other company drivers who made New York deliveries, 

including Philip Shields ("Shields"), Victor Kresge ("Kresge"), William Shetter ("Shetter") and 

David Herchelroath ("Herchelroath"), met with Shumaker. At the meeting, Shumaker revealed to 

his employees that he was negotiating a contract to cover them as Teamsters with Local 430. 

Brady testified that "[a]t that meeting, we told him that if he negotiated a contract for pretty much 

what we already had as far as vacation time and our benefit package, that that would be 

acceptable with us. But we wanted to talk to the union." (Ex. 16 at 16-17) No representative 

from Local 430 contacted Brady. 

According to Cicak, he met with David Shumaker on at least two occasions prior to 

entering into the contract with Shumaker's company. Cicak admitted that prior to these meetings 

he did not obtain authorization cards from employees designating the Local as their exclusive 

bargaining agent with their employer nor did he visit the companies to speak with employees 

about a contract or union membership. (Ex. 1 at 27) Instead, Cicak met with David Shumaker, 

the employer, and drafted agreements for the New York Metro Division and the New York 

Metro Division Owner-Operators based solely on terms provided to him by the employer. Cicak 

did not verify these terms or discuss them with Shumaker's employees.10 Cicak relied entirely on 

10 Cicak also drafted a project labor agreement ("PLA") with Shumaker for Masonry 
Transport to cover deliveries made to New York by drivers. However, this agreement was never 
approved because none of the Masonry Transport drivers returned ballots. (Ex. 19) Cicak 
wrongly claimed the Local did not implement the PLA because Masonry Transport had either 
gone out of business or lost the account. (Ex. 1 at 15-16) 
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the employer's representations concerning employee salary, work conditions and benefits and 

made no attempt to include any additional benefits for employees such as Teamster health and 

welfare or pension benefits. (Ex. 1 at 28) Cicak claimed : 

It [contracts] locked in specifically the plans they [employees] had 
in place. What we did admittedly outside the norm of how we 
ordinarily do business, I looked on this as being — these guys are 
already members, but they don't have a contract. We need to get 
them a contract. 

We took what they had already, the full details of that, to 
put in a one-year agreement to get them covered to allow us then 
at the end of that year to go into a normal negotiation phase where 
we could do some improvements and let's work on it from here. 
But the up front thing was to get them locked in, protect them on 
what they have now so we get that in writing. That's where we 
were coming from. So on health and welfare, their 401-K plan, sick 
time, holidays, it's a complete written down version of exactly what 
they had prior to but which was never in writing. 

Q: And you received this information from who, Shumaker? 
A: From Shumaker. And the gist of it was, hey, guys, this is what he's 

telling me you have. If this isn't satisfactory and correct, vote no. If 
it's satisfactory and correct, vote yes and we'll go from there. (Id. 
at 28) 

Cicak's failure to consult with the individuals who would be working under the bargaining 

agreement to determine bargaining demands appeared to have violated the Local's Bylaws. Local 

Bylaws Section 26(A) states: 

Whenever a collective bargaining agreement is about to be negotiated, 
modified or extended at the request of this Local Union, the President shall 
call a meeting at which the membership shall determine and authorize the 
bargaining demands to be made. Only those persons working under, or 
who will be working under the collective bargaining agreement to be 
negotiated, modified or extended, shall be eligible to participate in the 
meeting. (Ex. 22) 
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Indeed, Shumaker employees Kresge and Brady both testified that the agreement Cicak 

sent them had less favorable working conditions than their current working conditions. For 

instance, Kresge, who stopped working for Shumaker in August 2000, testified that he received a 

28 percent share of any load he delivered on behalf of the company. (Ex. 4 at 16) The contract 

between Shumaker and Local 430 provided that drivers at his seniority level would receive a 27 

percent share. (Ex. 6; Ex. 4 at 35-36) Both Brady and Kresge received two-weeks vacation. (Ex. 

4 at 37) However, the Local 430 contract guaranteed only a one-week vacation. (Ex. 6) 

Moreover, as Cicak admitted, the contract he signed with Shumaker did not provide any new 

benefits or improved terms beyond what the employer claimed he already provided to workers. 

For instance, the contract did not provide Teamsters health, welfare or pension benefits. (Ex. 6) 

Cicak admitted he made no effort to speak with or organize the Shumaker Trucking 

company drivers who did not make deliveries to New York City. Cicak in explaining why he did 

not attempt to organize all of Shumaker's employees testified as follows: 

A: Again, the whole thrust that I was trying to protect the guys who 
had been 429 members. When he told me there were other guys 
in the company, I 'm sitting there thinking that's great because 
we are doing a one-year contract and I'm going to go after them. *** 

The way I viewed this was, is without authorization cards he was 
willing to recognize the union as the bargaining agent for the people 
and the divisions he had with 429 and that he was willing to do a 
contract with them. And he was not trying to fight us in any way 
about that. 
If we had gone after other drivers in the company that were going 
other places, he would have resisted that. He was not interested in 
doing that. So I thought we would get a piece of this and then go 
after the rest of it,...we'll be able to go after them to get them in 
the union when we renegotiate the first contract. (Ex. 1 at 37-38) 
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In late December 2000, Cicak mailed to three individuals, Shields, Kresge and Brady, 

copies of the proposed owner-operator contract between Local 430 and Shumaker's Metro New 

York Division, Local 430 membership applications, Local 430 authorization cards and a ballot to 

vote on the Local contract. Shetter and Herchelroath did not receive this mailing from the union 

because neither apparently wanted to join the union. (Ex. 17) Of the three drivers who received 

the contract and the ballot, only Shields returned a ballot approving the contract. Neither Kresge 

nor Brady returned a ballot. 

On December 18, 2000, a few months after the meeting Shumaker convened, Brady 

received in the mail from Local 430 a copy of a proposed contract for ratification between Local 

430 and Shumaker Trucking Owner/Operator Division. On December 23, 2000, Brady 

subsequently received a contract for ratification that applied to Shumaker Trucking drivers with 

instructions to submit his vote by December 28, 2000. At the time he received this material, 

Brady had not been contacted by anyone from Local 430. Brady did not submit a vote on the 

contract. He testified as follows: 

Q: Did you vote? 
A: No, I didn't. 
Q: Why not? 
A: Because there was nothing in the contract. We never negotiated. 

We never heard so much from the janitor at 430. So the contract 
was not negotiated. I mean, I was in the union11 long enough to 
know that a non-negotiated contract is an illegal contract. I'm 
not going to vote on an illegal contract. (Ex. 16 at 18) 

Cicak testified that he approached Shumaker and informed him that, since only one employee had 

11 Brady testified that from 1969 to 1977 he was an IBT Local 776 member in 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania when he worked for Roadway Express. (Ex. 16 at 4) 
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voted on the contract, Shumaker did not have to recognize the union. Shumaker allegedly agreed 

to recognize the union if Cicak would agree to have a one-person bargaining unit. Only Shields 

became a union member. (Ex. 1 at 18) According to Kresge, after the contract had been ratified, 

he told Cicak the contract was substandard with respect to his wages and vacations but Cicak 

brushed him off and told him the contract had already been ratified. (Ex. 4 at 36) 

E. Local 430 Contract With Shumaker's New York Metro Division 

On January 4, 2001, David Shumaker on behalf of Shumaker Trucking signed a collective 

bargaining agreement between Local 430 and the New York Metro Division of Shumaker 

Trucking Company which ran from January 2, 2001 to January 2, 2002. (Ex. 6) Cicak signed the 

contract on the Local's behalf. (Id ) The contract specified that the employer recognized Local 

430 as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all drivers employed by the New York Metro 

Division of the Shumaker Trucking "who regularly (approximately once a week) transport 

product into New York City on boom trucks (New York drivers)."( Id- at 1) Local 430 dues 

records dated May 25, 2001, indicated one Local union member, Shields, was employed in 

Shumaker Trucking's New York Metro Division. (Ex. 7) 

F. Local 430's Contract with Shumaker's New York Metro Division Subcontracted 
Owner-Operators 

On February 23, 2001, Cicak entered into a contract on the Local's behalf with Shumaker 

Trucking that covered the owner-operator drivers. In late January 2001, Cicak sent to Shumaker 

owner-operators Francis Beard ("Beard"), Kenneth Berwager ("Berwager") and Lawrence 

Witters ("Witters") copies of the proposed New York Metro Division Subcontracted 
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Owner/Operators of Shumaker Trucking contract, a ballot to vote on the contract, Local 430 

authorization cards and application cards for Local 430 membership. Beard, Berwager and 

Witters returned authorization and membership application cards. On February 23, 2001, Cicak 

notified Shumaker that the owner-operator contract had been approved. 

Local 430 entered into a contract with Shumaker to cover only owner-operators who 

made deliveries to New York City. As of May 2001, Shumaker had approximately 19 owner-

operators. Of these 19 drivers, the Chief Investigator contacted ten and all indicated that at no 

time were they approached by a Local 430 representative about their interest in joining the Local. 

(Ex. 17 ) One driver, Mark Lehman, indicated that he approached the Shumaker Trucking 

dispatcher and inquired if he could join the union so he could make deliveries to New York but 

was informed he could not join the union. (Id.) 

G. NLRJB Complaint 

In 2000, Kresge filed a complaint with the NLRB against Shumaker Trucking for its 

actions in entering into a contract with Local 430. On October 24, 2001, Shumaker Trucking 

executed a settlement agreement which included agreeing not to recognize Local 430 as the 

bargaining representative of Shumaker Trucking's employees unless and until Local 430 was 

certified as the collective bargaining representative of Shumaker's employees by the NLRB. 

Shumaker further agreed not to give effect to the contract entered into with Local 430 on January 

2, 2001 and to reimburse all dues paid by employees to Local 430 under the contract. (Ex. 18 ) 

According to Cicak, withdrawal cards were issued to all Shumaker employees covered under the 

Metro Division company contract. (Ex. 1 at 13-14) The owner-operator agreement remained in 

effect. (Ex. 10) 

14 



IV. ANALYSIS 

After Local 429 stopped providing union cards to Shumaker Trucking drivers, on Local 

430's behalf, Cicak entered into two collusive contracts with Shumaker Trucking which allowed 

the company to continue making deliveries to New York City construction sites. Cicak's 

agreement with David Shumaker to enroll in the union only company drivers and subcontracted 

owner-operators who made deliveries to New York City evidenced the collusive nature of the 

contracts. Cicak accommodated the employer to enable Shumaker Trucking to continue to make 

New York City union deliveries at the expense of other company drivers and subcontracted 

owner-operators. Indeed, Cicak admitted that he made no attempt to organize Shumaker's other 

drivers because the employer would never have agreed to recognize the union. Cicak's claim that 

he intended to organize the other employees later was not persuasive given the Local's 

pronounced decline in membership which resulted in the layoff of Local staff. (Ex. 1 at 1-10) 

Indeed, from 1997 to 2000, the Local lost 533 members, nearly a quarter of its total membership. 

(Ex. 2) 

Morever, as further evidence of Cicak's collusion with the employer, he failed to comply 

with the Local's Bylaws and IBT procedures for negotiating first contracts. Cicak negotiated the 

contract directly with the employer without contacting employees concerning their work 

conditions or first contract demands. Local Bylaws Section 26(A) required the President 

whenever a collective bargaining agreement is about to be negotiated to call a meeting of those 

persons who will be working under the agreement in order to determine and authorize bargaining 

demands. IBT organizing materials specified that before contract talks are commenced with 



employers the "union asks you what you'd like to see in a contract." (Ex. 20 at 3) Cicak admitted 

that he never made any effort to contact any individuals who would have been covered under the 

contract. Instead, Cicak accepted terms from the employer, including which individuals to be 

covered under the contract, which he incorporated into a proposed contract. 

Shumaker's employees never designated Local 430 as their bargaining agent. It was only 

after Cicak reached an agreement with Shumaker that he sent, along with the proposed contract 

and a contract ratification ballot, Local 430 authorization cards and Local 430 membership 

applications to select employees. Cicak chose to recognize the Metro Division company contract 

although only one member of the three-member employer designated bargaining group returned a 

ballot. 

Through Cicak's collusion, Shumaker Trucking appears to have committed an unfair labor 

practice by selecting the collective bargaining representative for its employees.12 Indeed, on 

October 24, 2001, Shumaker Trucking executed a settlement agreement with the NLRB which 

disavowed its Metro Division company contract with Local 430 and agreed not to recognize 

12 Section 8(A)(l)of the NLRA provides: 

It shall be an unfair labor practice for an employer-
(1) to interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees in the exercise 
of the rights guaranteed in Section 7; 

29 U.S.C. § 158(a)(1) 

Section 7 of the NLRA provides in pertinent part: 

Employees shall have the right to self-organization, to form, join 
or assist labor organizations, to bargain collectively through 
representatives of their own choosing... 

29 U.S.C. § 157 
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Local 430 as the bargaining representative of Shumaker Trucking's employees unless and until 

Local 430 was certified as the collective bargaining representative of Shumaker's employees by 

the NLRB. (Ex. 18) The collusion required Cicak to violate the Local Bylaws and to assist 

Shumaker's violation of the labor laws. There was no benefit to the union. It was designed not 

to assist workers but to allow a non-union employer to evade Local 282's exercise of its 

contractual rights which would have required substantially more payments. 
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V. PROPOSED CHARGE 

Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that Kevin Cicak be charged as follows: 

While a member of the IBT and principal officer of Local 430, you brought reproach upon 

the EBT by colluding with an employer in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, 

Section 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT Constitution, to wit: 

From approximately November 1999 to the present, as detailed in the above report, you 

colluded with David Shumaker, an officer of Shumaker Trucking Company, to cause Local 430 to 

enter into two contracts with Shumaker Trucking Company, a New York Metro Division 

company contract and a subcontracted owner-operators contract, which failed to cover all 

Shumaker Trucking Company's drivers and owner-operators. Instead, you and Shumaker agreed 

that the contracts would grant Local membership to only those company drivers and owner-

operators who made deliveries to New York City construction sites. You entered into these 

contracts with Shumaker Trucking Company without consulting with affected employees as 

required under Local Bylaws Section 26(A) and without being designated as the exclusive 

bargaining agent for Shumaker's employees or subcontracted owner-operators. 
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In light of the hearing and decision of the hearing panel, 
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necessary. 
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Members of the 
Independent Review Board 
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cc: Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
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IRB REFERRAL OF CHARGES AGAINST KEVIN CICAK 
HEARING PANEL RECOMMENDATION 

I. Introduction 

On February 4, 2002, the Independent Review Board ("IRB") referred to General 
President Hoffa an investigative report and proposed charge against Local 430 President 
Kevin Cicak. The charge alleges that Brother Cicak brought reproach upon the union and 
violated his oath of office by colluding with an employer, Shumaker Trucking Company 
("Shumaker Trucking"), with respect to collective bargaining agreements covering 
certain Shumaker Trucking employees and owner-operators, in violation of Article II, 
Section 2(a), and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1) and (2), of the International Constitution.1 

Specifically, the IRB alleges that Brother Cicak entered into two collusive 
contracts with Shumaker Trucking covering only those drivers whose routes included 
periodic deliveries to union construction sites in New York City and that he did so for the 
purpose of enabling Shumaker to evade the jurisdiction of Teamsters Local 282 in New 
York. According to the IRB's investigative report, non-union companies cannot gain 
access to such sites unless they pay their drivers the prevailing Local 282 contract wages 
and benefits, as well as a ten percent processing fee to the contractor. 

Pursuant to his authority under Article XIX, Section 11(a), the General President 
appointed a hearing panel consisting of Charles M. Byrnes (Chairman), Larry M. 
McDonald and Stuart B. Mundy. A properly noticed hearing was held on March 6, 2002, 
at Local Union 430 in York, Pennsylvania. International Representative Jim Blanchard 
submitted into evidence the investigative report and exhibits compiled by the IRB in 

1. Article II, Section 2(a), describes the general obligations of a member of 
the Union. Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), states that internal union charges may be based 
upon "[violation of any specific provision of the Constitution, or Local Union Bylaws or 
rules of order, or the failure to perform any of the duties specified thereunder." Article 
XIX, Section 7(b)(2), states that internal charges may be based upon "[violation of oath 
of office or the oath of loyalty to the Local Union and the International Union." The oath 
of office requires officers to "act solely in the best interests of our members" and "to 
protect the members' interests in all dealings with employers." 
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support of the charge against Brother Cicak. Brother Cicak spoke in his own defense, 
and submitted himself to questioning by the Panel members. 

II. Panel Findings 

Prior to entering into the two contracts at issue here, Shumaker Trucking had for 
some time paid dues to Teamsters Local 429 in Reading, Pennsylvania, on behalf of 
certain drivers whose routes included union construction sites in New York City. Local 
429 accepted the dues payments without requiring Shumaker Trucking to enter into a 
collective bargaining agreement covering these drivers. This arrangement allowed 
Shumaker Trucking to procure the documentation its drivers needed to access union 
construction sites in New York while remaining a non-union company. The arrangement 
also allowed Shumaker to avoid paying the prevailing wages and benefits established by 
Local 282 when making deliveries to sites within the jurisdiction of Local 282.2 

Shumaker Trucking was apparently only one of several employers from whom Local 429 
accepted dues payments without requiring a contract. The Vice-President and apparent 
owner of Shumaker Trucking, David Shumaker, had maintained a similar arrangement 
with Local 429 for another of his companies, Masonry Transport. 

The practice at Local 429 of allowing these drivers to maintain membership 
without being covered by a collective bargaining agreement came to light sometime in 
the spring of 2000, after newly elected principal officer Thomas Rochowicz took charge 
of the Local. On August 16, 2000, General President Hoffa appointed a Personal 
Representative, Joint Council 53 President Frank Gillen, to assist Brother Rochowicz in 
resolving these and other problems faced by the new administration at Local 429. 

The charged party, Local 430 President Kevin Cicak3, testified that he first heard 
sometime in August 2000 that Local 429 had some dues-paying members who did not 

2. IRB Report at 1, note 2. 

3. Brother Cicak has been the President and Principal Officer of Local 430 
since 1994. Local 430 represents approximately 1,563 employees under 34 collective 
bargaining agreements. IRB Report at 4. 
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have a contract, including employees of Shumaker Trucking and Masonry Transport.4 

(IBT Hearing Transcript at 34-35). Brother Cicak believed that both of these companies 
were within the jurisdiction of his Local, which is described on the Local's charter as 
York, Pennsylvania. According to Brother Cicak, Masonry Transport operated out of 
Emigsville, Pennsylvania, just outside the city of York, and was clearly within Local 
430's jurisdiction.5 (IRB Exh. 1, at 34). Shumaker Trucking's only facility was located 
in Dillsburg, Pennsylvania, which is also within in York County. 

In late August Brother Cicak discussed the situation with Brother Gillen. Brother 
Gillen confirmed that the Local had accepted dues on behalf of these drivers even though 
they were not covered by a contract. Brother Gillen also indicated that the new 
administration at Local 429 was not interested in pursuing a contract with David 
Shumaker because both Shumaker Trucking and Masonry Transport were outside the 
Local's jurisdiction, and their distance from the Local made it impractical to negotiate 
and maintain a contract. (IRB Exh. 1, at 21-22; IRB Exh. 13, at 27-28) Brother Gillen 
advised Brother Cicak that these companies were in Local 430's jurisdiction,6 and urged 
Cicak to "get a contract" so that the drivers assigned to make deliveries to New York City 

4. The IRB's investigative report states that Brother Cicak knew as early as 
November 1999 that Local 429 had refused to accept further dues payments from 
Shumaker Trucking because it did not have a contract with the Local. (IRB Report at 2, 
18.) This cannot be the case, since Brother Rochowicz did not take office until January 
2000, and did not terminate Local 429's relationship with Shumaker Trucking until 
August 2000. 

5. Apparently based upon corporate records, the IRB's investigative report 
states that Masonry Transport was located in Dillsburg, Pennsylvania (IRB Report at 5, 
citing IRB Exh. 11). At the hearing, Brother Cicak testified that Masonry Transport 
operated exclusively as a contract hauler for Trendwyth Industries which was located in 
Emigsville, Pennsylvania (IBT Hearing Transcript at 35). Other witnesses similarly 
testified that Masonry Transport's only customer was Trendwyth Industries. 

6. Brother Cicak testified that, in his opinion, there could be a potential 
jurisdictional dispute concerning whether the Shumaker Trucking facility in Dillsburg 
was within the jurisdiction of Local 430 or Local 776. According to Cicak, Brother 
Gillen assured him that, if he got a contract for these drivers, Local 430 would retain 
jurisdiction because Dillsburg was in York County (IRB Exh. 1, at 34). 
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construction sites would not lose that work and possibly their jobs. (IRB Exh. 1, at 21-
22; IBT Hearing Transcript at 36-37.) Around the same time, Local 429 President 
Rochowicz reportedly had a conversation with David Shumaker in which Rochowicz 
suggested that Shumaker contact either Local 776 or Local 430 if he wanted to get a 
contract covering the drivers who had previously been allowed to maintain membership 
in Local 429 (IRB Exh. 13. at 28).7 

In early September 2000, David Shumaker contacted Brother Cicak and indicated 
that he wanted to negotiate a contract with Local 430 that would cover the New York 
drivers who were no longer allowed to maintain membership in Local 429. Shumaker 
said he wanted to get these individuals covered by a contract so that he would not have to 
lay them off. (IRB Exh. 1, at 22.) Brother Cicak testified that he and Shumaker first 
negotiated a project labor agreement ("PLA") for Masonry Transport because that 
company's situation was the most urgent.8 (IRB Exh. 1, at 25.) Near the end of October 
2000, after coming to an agreement on the terms of the PLA, Brother Cicak and 
Shumaker began to negotiate the two contracts for Shumaker Trucking drivers that gave 
rise to these charges. 

7. Neither the IRB nor Brother Cicak sought testimony from Brother Gillen as 
to how Shumaker came to contact Local 430. The IRB did include among its supporting 
exhibits Brother Gillen's report to General President Hoffa on Local 429 dated February 
20, 2001. In that report, Brother Gillen stated only that". . . Local 429 turned over that 
group [Shumaker Trucking] to Local 430." (IRB Exh. 14, at 5; see also IRB Exh. 4, at 47 
(former Shumaker driver Victor Kresge testifying that, during a telephone conversation 
with Brother Gillen several months after the Shumaker contracts were executed, Gillen 
stated only that "everything was moved to York.").) 

8. At that time, Masonry Transport's entire business consisted of hauling for 
one customer (Trendwyth) to one construction site in New York with no guarantee of any 
further business once that project was complete. For that reason, Brother Cicak believed 
that a PLA was the appropriate framework for an agreement with Masonry Transport. 
(IBT Hearing Transcript at 37; IRB Exh. 1, at 45.) Although Brother Cicak and 
Shumaker came to agreement on the terms of a PLA, Local 430 never implemented it or 
extended membership to any Masonry Transport driver because none of the drivers 
elected to vote on the agreement. (IRB Exh. 19.) 
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Shumaker Trucking utilized two types of drivers: individuals who were employed 
by the company and drove company-owned vehicles ("company drivers"), and 
subcontracted owner-operators who owned their own vehicles and leased them to the 
company ("owner-operators"). Brother Cicak testified that he and Shumaker first 
discussed a contract for the company drivers who made deliveries to New York 
construction sites. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 38-39). In the resulting contract, these 
drivers are described more specifically as "all drivers employed by the New York Metro 
Division of the Company, who regularly (approximately once per week) transport 
product into New York City on boom trucks (New York drivers)".9 (IRB Exh. 6.) As of 
October 2000, there were three company drivers who were considered the primary 
drivers for New York, although they also made deliveries to other destinations. (IRB 
Exh. 4 at 31-32.) All had previously been allowed to maintain membership at Local 429 
(IRB Exh. 1 at 35). 

Brother Cicak and Shumaker met and/or spoke on the telephone several times 
between October 24, 2000, and December 8, 2000, and exchanged proposals for the New 
York company drivers' contract. The resulting contract memorialized the drivers' 
existing wages, benefits and working conditions, and also provided the drivers for the 
first time with the protections afforded by a union contract including a grievance 
procedure, a "just cause" provision, seniority rights and a maintenance of standards 
provision. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 66-67; IRB Exh. 6.)10 Although the contract 
covered only drivers who made regular deliveries to New York, its terms also applied 
when those drivers were hauling loads to other destinations (IBT Hearing Transcript at 
85). 

9. Brother Cicak testified that Shumaker maintained a separate "New York 
Metro" seniority list that served as the exclusive call list for drivers for New York loads 
(IBT Hearing Transcript at 83-84). 

10. The IRB criticized Brother Cicak for not attempting to negotiate any 
improvements to the drivers' existing wages and benefits, such as participation in 
Teamster health and welfare or pension plans (IRB Report at 10). Brother Cicak 
explained that, while some of the 34 contracts in the Local do provide for Teamster 
benefits, others do not (IRB Exh. 1, at 42- 43). Brother Cicak further indicated that the 
Local has not been able to negotiate Teamsters pension and health and welfare provisions 
in any of its first-time contracts (IBT Hearing Transcript at 58). 
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The parties reached a tentative agreement in early December, and Brother Cicak 
mailed Shumaker Trucking's final offer, ballots and authorization cards to the three 
primary New York drivers. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 40; IRB Exh. 1, at 18- 20) At 
some point thereafter, it was discovered that Local 430 had mistakenly sent out a copy of 
a proposed contract for the subcontracted owner-operators to the company drivers. A 
copy of the correct contract was mailed out with a memorandum dated December 18, 
2000. (Exh. B to IRB Exh. 4; IBT Hearing Transcript at 100) As of the December 28 
deadline, Brother Cicak had received a response from one driver (Phil Shields), who 
voted in favor of the contract. The other two New York drivers (Victor Kresge and Jim 
Brady) did not respond. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 94-95) 

Brother Cicak informed David Shumaker of the results, and told him that he was 
not obligated to recognize the contract because only one driver responded. Shumaker 
indicated, however, that he was willing to recognize a one-person bargaining unit as long 
as the union would agree that Kresge and Brady would not be covered by the agreement 
(IBT Hearing Transcript at 40; IRB Exh. 1, at 18). Brother Cicak signed the contract on 
behalf of the union on January 2, 2001 (IRB Exh. 6). Kresge and Brady were not 
afforded membership in Local 430 and did not work under the agreement.11 (IBT Hearing 
Transcript at 87-88). Shumaker subsequently transferred them off the call list for New 
York loads (IBT Hearing Transcript at 40-41, 86-87).12 

11. Brother Cicak testified that, when he did not receive a response from Brady 
or Kresge, he assumed that they were not interested in joining the union and that he could 
not force them to join. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 40; IRB Exh. 1, at 18). 

12. Former company driver Victor Kresge filed an unfair labor practice charge 
against the company on April 9, 2001, for allegedly selecting the collective bargaining 
representative for its employees (Exh. B to IRB Exh. 4). Without admitting any improper 
conduct, Shumaker Trucking agreed that it would no longer give effect to the company 
drivers' contract or otherwise deal with Local 430, unless and until Local 430 was 
subsequently certified by the NLRB as the employees' collective bargaining 
representative in an appropriate bargaining unit (IRB Exh. 18). As a result of this 
settlement, the New York Metro Division contract ceased to be effective at the end of 
October 2001 (IRB Exh. 18). 
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Brother Cicak acknowledged that, in the course of negotiating the New York 
company drivers' contract, he deviated from the procedures normally applicable to 
organizing a new unit and negotiating a first contract (IRB Exh. 1, at 28). It appears, 
however, that, consistent with his conversation with Brother Gillen, Brother Cicak 
believed his immediate and primary objective was to protect former Teamsters whose 
jobs were now in jeopardy by getting them a union contract as soon as possible (IBT 
Hearing Transcript at 45, 54; IRB Exh. 1, at 28, 37). Brother Cicak testified that he 
believed he had to act promptly to prevent the drivers from loosing their jobs and did not 
attempt to obtain signed authorization cards designating Local 430 as their exclusive 
bargaining representative until he sent out copies of the proposed tentative agreement. 
Unlike other organizing campaigns in which he had previously been involved, these 
drivers were not strangers to the Union. The drivers had previously maintained 
membership in Local 429 and by doing so had already expressed their interest in 
Teamster membership. Brother Gillen, who had been assigned as a Personal 
Representative to Local 429, had urged Cicak to "get a contract" so that the drivers could 
keep their employment with Shumaker. Cicak was under the impression that the only 
reason Local 429 did not pursue a contract with Shumaker was because the drivers were 
not within that Local Union's geographic jurisdiction. And, the employer was willing to 
recognize Local 430. (IRB Exh. 1, at 10-11). 

Brother Cicak also acknowledged that he did not hold a proposal meeting to 
determine the drivers' bargaining demands as required by Section 26(A) of Local 430's 
Bylaws, visit the worksite, or otherwise communicate with any of the drivers to verify 
their current working conditions or bargaining demands (IRB Exh. 1, at 27-28; IBT 
Hearing Transcript at 39, 117-18). Brother Cicak testified that the drivers were on the 
road a lot and hard to reach (IBT Hearing Transcript at 117-18), noted that he thought it 
necessary to act promptly, and said that, in any event, Shumaker would not agree to 
anything more than the wages, benefits and working conditions enjoyed by the drivers 
while they were members of Local 429 (IRB Exh. 1, at 28; IBT Hearing Transcript at 
39).13 

13. The record indicates that, at least initially, the company drivers did tell 
Shumaker that they would be satisfied with a union contract that essentially reflected 
their current terms and conditions of employment with a few additional holidays (IRB 
Exh. 4, at 25; IRB Exh. 16 ,at 16.) 
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Brother Cicak testified that he did not believe it was necessary to independently 
verify the information he received from Shumaker about the drivers' current terms and 
conditions of employment because he planned to send the resulting agreement to the 
drivers and expected that they would quickly inform him of any discrepancy before they 
approved the final agreement (IRB Exh. 1, at 28). He assumed that the drivers would 
vote "no" or otherwise contact him if they were in anyway dissatisfied with the contract 
(IRB Exh. 1, at 28; IBT Hearing Transcript at 115-116). He also included a 
"maintenance of standards" provision in the agreement, guaranteeing that "all conditions 
of employment at the site relating to wages, hours of work and general working 
conditions shall be maintained at not less than the highest standards in effect at the time 
of the signing of this Agreement." (IRB Exh. 6).14 

Sometime after Brother Cicak and Shumaker had begun discussions regarding a 
contract for the company drivers, the two parties entered into negotiations for a second 
contract for three owner-operators who had expressed an interest in being represented by 
the union. Brother Cicak and Shumaker negotiated a contract that was modeled after the 
contract for company drivers and that would apply to "all subcontracted owner operators 
employed by the New York Metro Division of the Company, who regularly 
(approximately once per week) transport product into New York City on boom trucks." 
(IRB Exh. 8; IBT Hearing Transcript at 41). 

Brother Cicak mailed a copy of a tentative agreement to the three owner-operators 
together with ballots and authorization cards several weeks after he mailed out the 
company drivers' contract (IBT Hearing Transcript at 99-100). Two of the three drivers 
voted in favor of the offer. The third driver did not initially return a ballot, but later 
decided that he wanted to work under the contract and submitted an authorization card to 

14. Former Shumaker company driver Kresge testified that the contract did not 
accurately reflect the company drivers' existing wages and benefits. He stated that, based 
upon his years of service, he was entitled to a percentage linehaul rate was 28% and two 
weeks of vacation. According to Kresge, he would only receive a percentage linehaul 
rate of 27% and one week of vacation under the contract negotiated by Cicak. (IRB Exh. 
4 at 35-37). Cicak testified that, had Kresge joined the union and worked under the 
contract, Kresge would have been protected by the maintenance of standards provision, 
and the Union would have enforced the provision to guarantee that Kresge maintained his 
previously wages and working conditions. (IBT Hearing Transcript at 61-63). 
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Local 430 (IBT Hearing Transcript at 41-42).15 On February 23, 2001, Brother Cicak 
signed the contract on behalf of the Local Union (IRB Exh. 8). Like the contract for the 
New York company drivers, this contract reflected the owner-operators' current wages, 
benefits and work conditions together with the protections afforded by grievance 
procedures, a just cause provision, seniority rights and a maintenance of standards 
provision.16 

While the record is not clear as to whether these owner-operators had previously 
been allowed to maintain membership in Local 429, it does not appear that they were. 
Brother Cicak testified at the hearing that, at the time these drivers expressed an interest 
in the union, they had had been making deliveries to other areas of the country and were 
interested in picking up New York work (IBT Hearing Transcript at 44). In addition, the 
TITAN dues printouts for these three individuals show that each paid an initiation fee to 
Local 430, whereas the dues printout for the company driver Shields shows that he had 
not paid an initiation fee to Local 430 (IRB Exh. 10). 

It appears, however, that Brother Cicak conducted the process of negotiating a 
contract with the owner-operators in the same manner as he did with respect to the 
company drivers. He did not obtain authorization cards prior to mailing out the tentative 
agreement for the vote. He did not hold a proposal meeting as required by Section 26 (A) 
of Local 430's bylaws, and it does not appear that he had any other contact with the 
owner-operators regarding their current working conditions or bargaining demands.17 

The IRB also reports, and Brother Cicak acknowledges, that Local 430 did not 
make any effort during this time to organize all of the Shumaker company drivers and 

15. The number of owner-operators covered by the contract eventually dropped 
to two, as one of the owner-operators took a withdrawal card effective August 21, 2001. 
(IRB Exh. 10) 

16. The owner-operator contract expired on February 27, 2002. The Union is 
has been negotiating with Shumaker for a successor contract but had not reached 
agreement as of the hearing date. IBT Hearing Transcript at 124-125. 

17. Brother Cicak did state that he confirmed with one of the three owner-
operators that there were only three owner-operators making deliveries to New York. 
(IRB Exh. 1 at 35) 
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owner operators, including those who did not make regular deliveries to New York (IRB 
Report at 2; IRB Exh. 1, at 41; IBT Hearing Transcript at 52). The IRB report does not 
indicate with any certainty the total number of drivers who were working for Shumaker 

18 
during the course of the negotiations. The record indicates that there were a total of 
five company drivers, and anywhere from 7 to 19 owner-operators, who delivered a 
variety of materials to various locations from the east coast to the Mississippi on flat bed 
trucks.19 (IBT Hearing Transcript at 43; IRB Exh. 4, at 7, 52; IRB Exh. 5; IRB Exh. 16, 
at 16; IRB Exh. 17.) 

Again, Brother Cicak viewed his first priority as making sure that Shumaker's 
New York drivers did not lose their jobs. He apparently decided that, in order to 
accomplish this goal, the better strategy was to first get a short-term (one-year) contract 
to protect these individuals. When it came time for contract renewal, he would have 
something positive to show the other drivers, and the time would be ripe to go after the 
entire company (IRB Report at 11, citing Exh 1, at 37-38).20 Brother Cicak testified that, 
had he immediately attempted to organize the entire company, Shumaker would have 
opposed him. The Local would have been forced to conduct a time-consuming 

18. None of the witnesses were able to state with certainty the number of 
company drivers and owner-operators utilized by Shumaker Trucking during the Fall of 
2000, and some of the testimony was conflicting (see, e.g., IRB Exh. 1, at 12, 13; IRB 
Exh. 4, at 8-9, 31; IRB Exh. 16, at 16). The IRB report also relied upon a telephone list 
of Shumaker Trucking and Masonry Transport drivers dated May 23, 2001 (IRB Exh. 5). 
The reliability of this list is questionable, however, given that the IRB's records of 
telephone conversations with some of these individuals (IRB Exh. 17) show that at least 
three of the owner-operators had left Shumaker well before May 23, 2001. There is also 
testimony indicating turnover among drivers was high (IRB Exh. 4, at 8). 

19. It appears that all of the company drivers drove flat bed trucks with boom 
crane trailers (IRB Exh. 16, at 6-8). It is unclear whether some or all of the owner-
operators also operated boom cranes. 

20. Brother Cicak testified that he did later attempt to organize all of the drivers 
in Shumaker's other company, Masonry Transport, but that he lost the NLRB election. 
(IRB Hearing Transcript at 112-113) 

10 



organizing campaign that might well result in the loss of the entire group, including the 
New York drivers (IBT Hearing Transcript at 52; IRB Exh. 1, at 38). 

III. Analysis 

Having carefully considered the evidence, the panel concludes that Brother Cicak, 
as he acknowledged, failed to follow his Local Union Bylaws and standard practice in 
attempting to organize and obtain a first contract for Shumaker's New York drivers. The 
panel is unable to conclude, however, that, under the circumstances, that these 
shortcomings, by themselves, either demonstrate any improper motivation or bring 
"reproach" upon the Union as alleged in the proposed charges. 

Initially, the panel believes that bringing "reproach" on the Union connotes a 
serious breach of an officer's or a member's obligations. This is consistent with the 
objects of the Consent Decree, the purposes underlying the Consent Decree and the stated 
jurisdiction of the Independent Review Board. The panel does not believe that the 
Consent Decree or the Independent Review Board were created or have as their purpose 
investigating, adjudicating or remedying every violation of the International Constitution, 
every violation of a Local Union's Bylaws or every action inconsistent with guidelines or 
best practices. 

Having so noted, the panel understands and appreciates the IRB's concern with the 
situation and circumstances presented in this case. Local 429 had refused to allow the 
Shumaker drivers to continue their membership principally because the Local believed 
that membership had been improperly granted and maintained. Brother Cicak did not 
follow standard practice with respect to contacting the Shumaker drivers, obtaining 
authorization cards designating the Local as their representative, or holding a proposal 
meeting before negotiating the contracts. When only one company driver responded 
affirmatively, Brother Cicak agreed to cover that driver with a one-person agreement. 
And, the Board was suspicious that the agreement was a subterfuge to allow Shumaker to 
evade the high standards set by Local 282's agreement with respect to deliveries made to 
construction sites within Local 282's jurisdiction. The Board was also cognizant of the 
history of Local 282 and its historic struggle to free itself from the influence of organized 
crime. 

Nevertheless, Brother Cicak was unaware of much of this background, and there is 
no evidence that he was motivated by anything other than a desire to protect what he 
understood were "Teamster" drivers. For example, there is no direct evidence of 
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collusion between Brother Cicak and David Shumalcer. There is no indication or 
suggestion that Brother Cicak received any monetary or other personal gain in return for 
entering into the contracts at issue. Nor is there even any indication that Cicak knew of 
or had any relationship with Shumaker before his conversation with Brother Gillen. 

Brother Gillen had been assigned as a personal representative to Local 429, was an 
experienced officer and was president of the Philadelphia Joint Council. Brother Cicak 
would naturally give significant weight to anything that Brother Gillen might say about 
union affairs and, in particular, about anything having to do with Local 429. As noted, 
Brother Gillen urged Cicak to "get a contract" so that the drivers could keep their 
employment with Shumaker. Brother Cicak understood that Local 429 had refused to 
allow the driver to continue their membership in Local 429 but understood that the reason 
for that action was that the drivers had not been covered by a collective bargaining 
agreement between Shumaker and Local 429 (IRB Exh. 1, at 39). Brother Cicak further 
understood that Local 429 was not pursuing such an agreement with Shumaker because it 
did not have geographic jurisdiction of the drivers, not because the Local Union believed 
there would be anything otherwise improper about such an agreement. 

These facts support Brother Cicak's testimony that his purpose in pursuing 
negotiating the contracts with Shumaker was to protect the drivers and maintain their 
status as union members. None of the evidence is inconsistent with this testimony, and, 
indeed, several other facts are inconsistent with any notion that Brother Cicak's actions 
were improperly motivated. There is, for example, no indication that Brother Cicak was 
aware of any of the details of the Local 282 agreement or that he had any intention of 
evading the Local 282 agreement (IBT Hearing Transcript at 49-50). Moreover, the 
Board's report incorrectly describes the applicable contract and ignores the applicable 
law when it asserts: "To gain entrance to union sites, non-union companies are required 
to pay their drivers the prevailing Local 282 contract wage and benefits as well as a ten 
percent processing fee to the contractor." (IRB Report at 1 n.2, Exh. 21.) The contract 
specifically excludes the delivery of materials such as the concrete block at issue in this 
case (Exh. 21, at 20, Section 28). Nor does the law permit contractors to prohibit or 
discriminate against "non-union" drivers with respect to deliveries to construction sites. 
E.g., Local 282, International Bhd. of Teamsters (Fortunato, Inc.), 197 N.L.R.B. 673 
(1972); Local 282, International Bhd. of Teamsters (Allco Concrete Products, Co.), 234 
N.L.R.B. 770, 97 L.R.R.M. (BNA) 1387 (1978). It therefore appears that the agreement 
Brother Cicak negotiated with Shumaker did not create a loophole through which 
Shumaker could evade the Local 282 agreement and its terms and conditions. 

Nor is it per se improper for a union to agree to a contact covering a one-member 
bargaining unit, even though the National Labor Relations Board will not issue a 
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certification in such a unit. E.g., Sonoma-Marin Publishing Co., 172 N.L.R.B. 625, 626 
n.2, 68 L.R.R.M. 1313 (1968) (and cases cited). 

Furthermore, while Brother Cicak did not follow standard practice, it is clear that 
he did submit the contracts he negotiated to the drivers before he signed them. When 
only one company driver responded favorably, Brother Cicak accurately informed the 
employer that he was not obligated to sign the agreement. Brother Cicak was also careful 
to insure that the agreements contained provisions guaranteeing that the drivers would 
maintain at least the same wages and standards they had previously enjoyed. The 
agreements were not confined to the New York deliveries, but cover the drivers with 
respect to all of their work. And, after the agreements were signed, Brother Cicak 
pursued a traditional organizing drive through the standard National Labor Relations 
Board procedures at Shumaker's other company, Masonry Transport. These facts are all 
inconsistent with the notion that Cicak was "colluding" with Shumaker and support his 
testimony that his strategy was to "get his foot in the door" with a first contract and, 
having demonstrated something positive, to go after the other drivers when it was time to 
negotiate a successor agreement. 

For all these reasons, the panel is convinced that Brother Cicak's intent was not to 
aid the employer or to undermine Local 282, but rather to assist individuals that he 
viewed as Brother Teamsters in obtaining a contract and keeping their jobs. Given this 
finding the panel concludes that the charges against Brother Cicak that he brought 
reproach upon the Union and colluded with Shumaker in violation of his oath of office 
have not been proven. 

The panel nevertheless believes that Brother Cicak should be admonished to 
follow appropriate procedures and the Local Union Bylaws in the future. The panel 
believes that, under the circumstances, this direction is wholly adequate to resolve the 
issues raised by Brother Cicak's conduct in this case. There is no evidence that a pattern 
of corruption exists at Local 430, or that Brother Cicak or other officers have been 
engaged in repeated violations of union policy or labor law. There is no indication that 
this is other than an isolated instance in which the normal procedures were disregarded. 
The IRB investigation, publication of the charges in the Teamster magazine, the hearing 
procedure and this decision have all impressed upon Brother Cicak the need to follow 
appropriate procedures in the future. Brother Cicak acknowledged the shortcomings in 
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his own testimony. For these reasons, the panel believes that warning Brother Cicak in 
this regard is fully sufficient to prevent any recurrence. 

IV. Panel Recommendations 

The Panel unanimously finds Brother Cicak not guilty of the charges of bringing 
reproach upon the Union or of colluding with the employer. The panel nevertheless 
admonishes Brother Cicak in tKe future 10 follow the standard procedures concerning 
oiganizing new groups of employees and negotiating collective bargaining agreements, 
including the provision in the Local 430 Bylaws that requires a proposal meeting before 
negotiating such an agreement. 

Date: Larry M. McDonald 

D.-ite: Stuart B. Mundy 
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